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Southfield

SN041235           OS 25” 1st edition  XXIII.3          Llysyfran

(Southfield Villa lies to the south of the above. OS 25” sheet XXIII.7)

Listed house

(4/62)  Early/mid C19.  Cement rendered, hipped slate roof, chamfered quoins, two storey, three windows, sashes in reveals, glazing bars, keyed openings.

Central panelled door under oblong fanlight, panelled reveals, simle wood doorcase with moulded cornice hood on plaster.
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A descendant Jones married and had two daughters. Heiresses Anne and Elizabeth.

Anne married Thomas Philipps of Velindre

Their son James Philipps was a prominent Methodist. He died 1894 and was buried at Llysyfran.

Their daughter Letitia married W.Melchior of Llanseilo.

Their daughter married D. James who died in 1919.

Their son was a William Melchior James and his son David M James (1890-1978) is described by FJ as an “odd fish….with delusions of grandeur”.

DE inherited part of the estate from his mother and one of his uncles having sued the other uncle for his share.

It can be said that, although having passed several times through the female line, it still remains in the hands of the same family that owned it in the fifteenth century. (DE)

Southfield was formerly a large farm of more than 400 acres occupying a third of the parish of Llysyfran. The 1881 census recorded 45 people living there.

The earlier house, now known as Lower Southfield, was down the slope a little to the north of the present one. It, some buildings and woodland with a paddock were sold off in recent years together with (separately) about 100 acres of land. 

The new house was completed on higher ground in 1841. It has some resemblance, albeit on a smaller scale, to Scolton.

Visit 5th December 2001 with KBH at the owner’s invitation.

No entrance survives although there is a gradual narrowing of the drive suggesting some sort of splay. The present drive is a single tarmacadam carriageway within a wider overall drive bounded by grass and hedgebanks including mature ash trees especially on the left (south) side. At about 200m there is a narrowing with stone gate piers. Through the wall to the right is a gateway with small wrought iron foot gate.

The fine looking house stands on a raised platform set back to the right and facing west. The whole is surrounded by stone walling about 20m in front and extending several meters beyond both sides of the house.

There were two Araucaria araucana in front of the house but these were felled in 1950.  A photograph is owned by DE. 

Remaining on the lawn is a large clump of Rhododendron ponticum to the north side of the door and a smaller trimmed yew and two box to the south. A serpentine path leads from footgate to main door where it joins into a path running along the wall of the house and straight on northwards to another wrought iron foot gate; southwards it goes straight to yet another small gate and up some steps between box hedging into the kitchen garden. This latter is about one quarter of an acre square and bounded by hedgebanks except for the side near the house which has a trimmed laurel hedge. No plants or trees survive in this garden.
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